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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

To The Members of Nina Percept Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Nina Percept Private Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2022, and the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 315t March 2022, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
(Mother information”)

» The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors report but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

* Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

* In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
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materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

e If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
Company to express an opinion on the financial statements.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
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b)

c)

d)

f)

)

h)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes
in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 315t March, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal
financial controls over financial reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, In
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements.

ii. ~ The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. ~(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the Note 54, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge
and belief, as disclosed in the Note 54, no funds have been received by
the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“"Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that
has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i)
and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any
material misstatement.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

N. K. Jain

(Partner)

(Membership No. 045474)
UDIN: 22045474AIPZFR3679

Place: Mumbai
Date: 9" May, 2022
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

To The Members of Nina Percept Private Limited
For The Year Ended 31st March, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Nina Percept
Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 315t March, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “"Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

M

Regd. Office: One International Center, Tower 3, 32nd Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road (West), Mumbai-400 013, Maharashtra, India.
(LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)



Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLP

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 315t March, 2022, based on the criteria for internat financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

e

. Jain
(Partner)

(Membership No. 045474)
UDIN: 22045474AIPZFR3679

Place: Mumbai
Date: 9" May, 2022
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ANNEXURE “B"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

To The Members of Nina Percept Private Limited
For The Year Ended 315t March, 2022

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) In respect of the Company’s property, plant and equipment and intangible assets:

(@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment
and relevant details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) Some of the Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the
year by the Management in accordance with a programme of verification, which
in our opinion provides for physical verification of all the Property, Plant and
Equipment at reasonable intervals having regard to the size of the Company and
the nature of its activities. According to the information and explanations given
to us no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties and hence reporting
under clause (i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment
(including Right of Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at 315t March, 2022 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

(ii) In respect of the Company’s Inventories:

(a) The inventories except for goods-in-transit were physically verified during the
year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In our opinion and based on
information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the
Company and nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the
aggregate for each class of inventories were noticed on such physical verification
of inventories when compared with books of account.

%
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(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during the year, from banks or
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us, the quarterly returns
filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement
with the audited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters.

(iii) The Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or security,
and granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the year,
and hence reporting under clause (iii) of the Order is not applicable.

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments guarantees and
securities provided, as applicable.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been specified for the activities of the
Company by the Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act,
2013.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a) Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Salse Tax, Service Tax, duty of
Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues
applicable to the Company have generally been regularly deposited by it with the
appropriate authorities in all cases during the year.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, value Added Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues in arrears as at 31%t March, 2022 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on 315 March, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:

Period to which Amount
Nature of Forum where .
Name of Statute Dues Dispute is Pendin the Amount (Rs. in
P 9 Relates Lakhs)
Income Tax Act Commissioner
! I T AY 2016-1 70.50
1961 ncome Tax (Appeals) 016-17
Uttar Pradesh Value |Commercial Tax |Assistant 2015-16, 2016-17, 4.98
Added Tax Act, 2008|UP VAT Commissioner 2017-18 '
Goods and Service |Goods and . o
Tax Act, 2017 Service Tax Joint Commissioner FY 2017-2018 . 74.28

i



Deloitte

Haskins & Sells LLP

(viii) There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were
surrendered or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax
Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(ix) (a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(x) (a)

(b)

(xi) (a)

(b)

(c)

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or
other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the
year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no
unutilized term loans at the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under
clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the
funds raised on short-term basis aggregating Rs. 643.57 lakhs have been used
for long-term purposes.

The Company has not made any investment in or given any new loan or
advances to any of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during the year
and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries or joint ventures or associate companies and hence
reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not issued any of its securities (including debt instruments)
during the year and hence reporting under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and
upto the date of this report.

As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion the Company is in compliance with Section 188 of the Companies Act
for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the
applicable accounting standards. The Company is a private company and hence the
provisions of section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

i



Deloitte
Haskins & Sells LLP

(xiv) (@) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued
to the Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing
and extent of our audit procedures.

(xv) In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of
the Order is not applicable.

(d) The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and accordingly reporting
under clause (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(xvii) The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 2,422.58 lakhs during the
financial year covered by our audit and Rs. 2,485.36 lakhs in the immediately
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the
year.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying
the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company
is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We,
however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a
transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act or special account
in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

N. K. Jain

Partner

Place: Mumbai (Membership No0.045474)
Date: 9% May, 2022 UDIN: 22045474AIPZFR3679
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NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
(Rs in Lakhs)

As at As at
Particulars Note No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
ASSETS
1. Non-Current Assets
(a)  Property, Plant and Equipment 4 617.60 535.99
(b)  Right of Use Assets 4a - 4.01
(c)  Goodwill 5 512.60 512.60
(d)  Other Intangible Assets 6 3,032.26 3.022.46
(e} Financial Assets
(i) Investments @ 90.08 90.08
(i} Other financial assets 8 3,036.25 2,430.73
f Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 961.25 512.57
(g)  Other Non Current Assets 10 84.19 100.23
(h)  Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 22 1,657.47 714.87
Total Non Current Assets 9,991.70 7,923.54
2. Current Assets
(a) Inventories 11 3,878.59 3,002.94
(b)  Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 13 10,844.35 11,133.92
(i} Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 6.84 75.72
(i) Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 7.68 4.45
(iv} Loans 16 114.69 129.60
(v) Other financial assets 17 7,008.56 7,098.57
(c)  Other Current Assets 18 1,625.09 1,250.21
Total Current Assets 23,485.80 22,695.41
TOTAL ASSETS 33,477.50 30,618.95
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a)  Equity Share Capital 19 118.00 118.00
(b)  Other Equity 20 8,930.26 11,670.41
Total Equity 9,048.26 11,788.41
LIABILITIES
1. Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Provisions 21 299.87 246.70
Total Non-Current Liabilities 299.87 246.70
2, Current Liabilities
(a)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 23 11,204.22 9,525.08
(i) Trade Payables 24
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 1,098.89 290.19
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 8,743.45 5,496.77
micro and small entemprises
(iify Lease liability 251 - 3.88
(iv) Other financial liabilities 25.2 1,422.82 1,572.08
(b)  Other Current Liabilities 26 1,312.52 1,401.74
(c) Provisions 27 309.38 259.51
(d)  Current Tax Liability (Net) 28 38.09 34.59
Total Current Liabilities 24,129.37 18,583.84
TOTAL LIABILITIES 24,429.24 18,830.54
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 33,477.50 30,618.95
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-56
In terms of our report attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP R AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
g—— =
) 7 -
ehul Parikh (I-Et:;shu ﬁpadia
Managing Director Director

Al

—_—

Mayank Palan . ~
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars Note No. For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

INCOME
Revenue from Operations 29 25,858.65 17,662.56
Other Income 30 53.45 29.47
Total Income 25,912.10 17,692.03
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed 31 14,705.57 10,552.89
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 32 425.56 149.21
Changes in inventories of Work-in-Progress 33 0.55 15.15
Direct Man Power & Site Expenses 34 6,600.39 4,826.57
Employee Benefits Expense 35 3,234.44 2,963.27
Finance Costs 36 860.60 645.66
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 37 270.81 300.73
Other Expenses 38 3,434.45 1,891.44
Total Expenses 29,532.37 21,344.92
Loss before Tax (3,620.27) (3,652.89)
Tax Expense / (Credit)
Current Tax 45 ~ =
Deferred Tax Credit 45 (926.88) (866,80)
Net Tax expense / (Credit) (926.88) (866.80)
Loss for the year (2,693.39) (2,786.09)
Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)
(i) ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to Profit and Loss

Remeasurements profit/(loss) of defined benefits plan 43 (62.49) 50.34
(i) Income Tax effect on above 15.73 (12.67)
Total Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) (46.76) 37.67
Total Comprehensive Income/{Loss) for the year (2,740.15) (2.748.42)
Earning per share 41
Basic and Diluted (in Rs.) (228.25) (236.11)
Face Value of Share 10.00 10.00
See accompanying notes to financial statements 1-56

In terms of our report attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

7 JAIN

Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 09, 2022
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ehul Parikh
Managing Director

Mayénk Palan™ __
Head Finance & Accounts
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Himanshu Kapadia
Director

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 09, 2022



NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

A. Cash flow from operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments for;
Depreciation and amortization expense
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for warranty expense
Interest income
Unrealised foreign exchange (gain)/loss
Net Loss arising on financial liability designated as at FVTPL
Allowance for Doubtful Retention Monies
Allowance for Doubtful Debts
Finance costs
Operating Cash Flow before werking capital changes
Changes in working capilal;
(Increase) / decrease in operating assets:
Inventories
Trade receivables
Current Loans
Other financial assets - Current
Other financlal assels - Non Current
Other Current Assets
Other non current assets
Increase / (decrease) in operaling liabilities:
Trade payables
Other Financial liabilities - Current
Other Current Liabililies
Cash used in operations
Tax paid
Net cash used in operating activities (A)

B. Cash flow from investing activities

Payments for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments
Amount paid against BTA considerations {Refer Note 51)
Receipts / (Deposit) in Escrow Account

Increase in bank deposits

Receipts from Investment in Deposits

Net cash used in Investing activities (B)

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in current borrowings

Lease Liability Fayment

Finance costs

Net cash generated/(used) from/in financing activities {C)

Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year {Refer Note 14)
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and cash equivalents

Notes:

(3,620.27)
270.81
30.54
10.00
{0.99)
4413
401.31
1,489.40
860.60 3,105.80
(514.47)
(875.65)
(1199.84)
14,92
(311.30)
(605.52)
(374.87)
16.04 (3,336.22)
4,011.24
(139.61)
(89.22) 3,782.41
{68.28)
(445.18)
(513.46)
(358.22)
(9.13)
(3.00)
(0.23)
0.99
(369.59)
4114.78
(4.50)
(860.47)
3,249.81
__ 2,366.76
(7.784.15)
(5,417.39)
2,366.76

(3,652.89)
300.73
(54.95)
12.30
(0.02)
5.68
1.40
264.93
736.12

645.66 1,911.85

(1,741.04)
679.09
(72.32)
(28.25)
1,538.40
(535.37)
(188.06)

(3.04)  1,390.45
(1,515.01)
206.38

(106.84) __ (1,415.47)

(1,766.08)

(262.91)

(2,028.97)
(329.19)
(9.32)
12.68
(2.92)
0.02

(326.73)
(566.99)
(9.00)
(644.78)

(1,220.77)

(3,578.47)

(4,205.68)

(7,784.15)

(3,578.47)

a) The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out In the Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS

7) - Statement of Cash Flow.

b) Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the Balance Sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities.

(Rs in Lakhs)

As at April 1, | Cash Flows For the year
2021 Unrealised Olhers ended
Particulars loss on March 31,
Foreign 2022
Exchange
Borrowings - Current 1,665.21 4114.78 - - 5,779.99
See accompanying notes lo financial statements
In terms of our report attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP / FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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N. K. JAIN
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date : May 09, 2022
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Mehul Parikh
Managing Director
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Maygdk Palan -
Head Finance & Accounts
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Himanshu Kapadia
Director

Place: Mumbai
Dale : May 09, 2022
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2.2

2.3

NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Corporate information

Nina Percept Private Limited ("the Company") is in the business of waterproofing services. It offers end-to-end
solutions in waterproofing. The Company has its major presence across the construction spectrum - including
residential, commercial, industrial, institutional and Infrastructure sectors. The Company was incorporated on
November 11, 2014. The Company is subsidiary of Pidilite Industries Ltd.

The address of its registered office and its principal place of business is 401, Naman Midtown, A wing, Senapati
Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road, Mumbai - 400013.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting and preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013('Act’) read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain Financial
Assets / Liabilities (including derivative instruments) measured at Fair value.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest Lakh,
except otherwise indicated.

Business Combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
the assets transferred, liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued in
exchange of control of the acquiree.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred over the net of acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purpose of impairment testing, Goodwill is allocated to each of the Company's cash generating units that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for the impairment annually or more frequently
when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is
less then its carrying amount, the impairment loss is first allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in Profit and Loss account. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

ke
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2.5.1

NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognises revenue from the following major sources:
+ Sale of goods

« Sale of services

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers for an amount that
reflects the consideration which the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. The
control of goods is transferred to customer depends on delivery basis (i.e. at the point in time when goods are
delivered at the customer's site). Control is considered to be transferred to customer when customer has ability to
direct the use of such goods/services and obtain substantially all the benefits from it. Sale of services are mainly in
the nature of time and material contracts. Revenue on time and material contracts are recognised at the point in
time when the related services are performed and certified by the client. Services performed and not certified by the
client, are recognised as revenue and are recorded as uncertified revenue. Incomplete services are recorded at cost
as work in progress and disclosed under inventories.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and
rebates, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from
customers.

Sales-related warranties are an assurance that the products sold comply with agreed-upon specifications.
Accordingly, the Company accounts for provision for warranties in accordance with Ind AS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets which we refer as uncertified revenue (Refer Note
17). Advance received as mobilisation advance from customer before transfer of control of goods or services
performed to the customer is recognised as contract liability (Refer Note 26).

Interest Income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

Insurance Claims

Claims/insurance claim etc. are accounted for when no significant uncertainties are attached to their eventual

receipt.

Leasing

At the inception of an arrangement, it is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. Leases are
classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Company as lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset (i) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits
from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (jii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the
asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (‘ROU") and a
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve
months or less (short - term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Ty
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2.7.2

NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term.
ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e.the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use)

is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cashflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The
lease payments are discount edusing the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the
incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a
corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will
exercise an extension or a termination option.

Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (i.e. INR)
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items (including financial assets and liabilities) denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. Gains or losses arising
from these translations are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is calculated using
applicable tax rates that have been enacted and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 and other tax laws, as
applicable.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilites are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

by
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NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the peried in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting pericd.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment acquired separately

Buildings, plant and machinery, vehicles, office equipment, furniture and fixures are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Capital Work in Progress

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Company's accounting policy. Such properties are classified and capitalised to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehcld land and Capital work in
progress) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method as per the useful life
prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. For certain items of Property, Plant and Equipment, the
company depreciates over estimated usefu! life which are different from the useful lives prescribed in Schedule Il to
the Companies Act 2013, which is based up on technical assessment made by technical expert and management
estimate. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflects fair approximation of
the period over which the assets are likely to be used. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis.

Estimated useful lives of the property, plant and equipment, other than the useful life prescribed in Schedule Il of
the Companies Act, 2013, are as follows:

a) Furniture and Fixtures : 3 to 5 years.

b) Office Equipment : 1 to 5 years.

c) Plant & Machinery : 1 to 5 years.

d) Vehicles : 1 to 10 years.

e) Leasehold Improvements : Over the life of the lease contract.
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NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives.

The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

Useful lives of intangible assets

Estimated useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows :

Computer software : 5-10 years

Trade mark : Assessed to have infinite life and can be renewed on periodic basis.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the asset may be impaired. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite useful life is reviewed annually to determine
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is
made on a prospective basis.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. If the recoverable amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost of inventories is determined on First in first out basis. Cost for this purpose includes cost of direct materials,
direct labour and appropriate share of overheads.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less all estimated
costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Obsolete, defective, unserviceable and slow /
non-moving stocks are duly provided for and valued at net realisable value.

Provisions (other than Employee Benefits)

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions (excluding retirement benefits) are determined based on the best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.
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2.13.2

NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

The estimated liability for service warranties is recorded when products applied and services provided. These
estimates are established using historical information on the nature, frequency and average cost of warranty claims
and management estimates regarding possible future incidence based on corrective actions on product applied
service failures. The timing of outflows will vary as and when warranty claim will arise - being typically up to ten
years service provided against the apply method. As per the terms of the contracts, the Company provides post-
contract warranty to some of its customers. The Company accounts for the post-contract provision for warranty on
the basis of the information available with the Management duly taking into account the current and past technical
estimates.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised but disclosed in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in statement of profit and
loss.

Financial Assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Debt instruments that meet conditions based on purpose of holding assets and contractual terms of instrument are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest method.

All other financial assets are measured at fair value.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified
as Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the
“Other income” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowance using expected credit loss model for financial assets which are not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Expected credit losses are weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to
receive, discounted at original effective rate of interest.

For Trade receivables, the Company measures loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses. The Company computes expected credit loss allowance based on a provision matrix which takes into
account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information.

Financial Liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities.

Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities (other than derivative financial instruments) are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using effective interest method. Interest expense is included in the Finance costs line item.
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NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

2.13.3 Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities
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The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or when the Company transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset in
which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or in which the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset and
does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company derecognises a financial liability (or a part of financial liability) when the contractual obligation is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge its
exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risks.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the contracts are entered into. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these contracts are measured at fair value and changes are recognised in profit or loss.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / loss before extraordinary items and tax for the
period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments. Cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise of cash at bank, cash in hand and
short- term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, as reduced by bank overdrafts.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include Provident Fund, Employee State Insurance Scheme, Gratuity Fund and Compensated
Defined contribution plans

The Company's contribution to Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme are considered as defined
contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and
when services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

For defined benefit plans, in the form of gratuity fund, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each balance sheet date.
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge
or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised
in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.
Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and
settlements); Net interest expense or income remeasurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item 'Employee
benefits expense'. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Company's defined benefit plans.

Short term and other long term employee henefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick
leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date.
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NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

2.17 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies, reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses, and accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below:

2.17.1 Impairment of Goodwili and Trademark
Goodwill and trademarks with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment on an annual basis. Recoverable
amount of cash generating units is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The
impairment test is performed at the level of the cash generating unit or groups of cash-generating units which are
benefitting from the synergies of the acquisition and which represents the lowest level at which the intangibles are
monitored for internal management purposes.
Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which
management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term growth rates,
weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past
experience and represent management's best estimate about future developments.

2.17.2 Employee related provisions
The costs of long term and short term employee benefits are estimated using assumptions by the management.
These assumptions include rate of increase in compensation levels, discount rates, expected rate of return on
assets and attrition rates. (Refer note 43)

3 Recent accounting pronouncements
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, as below.

Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items
produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognized in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly
attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The Company is evaluating the
amendment and its impact on financial statements.

Ind AS 16 — Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of net sale proceeds of items
produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not be recognized in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly
attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022. The Company is evaluating the
amendment and its impact on financial statements.

by
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NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

4.a

[

(Rs in\takhs)

Right of Use Assets
As at v Asat
31st March 31st March
Carrying Amounts 2022 2021
Leasehold Land - -
Leasehold Buildings - 4.01
TOTAL - 4.01
(Rs in Lakhs)
Leasehold Leasehold
Gross Carrying Amount Land Buildings TOTAL
Balance as at 31st March 2020 - 19.99 19.99
Additions - - -
Disposals/ Adjustments - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2021 - 19.99 19.99
Additions - - -
Disposals/ Adjustments - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2022 - 19.99 19.99
(Rs in Lakhs)
Leasehold Leasehold
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Land Buildings TOTAL
Balance as at 31st March 2020 - (7.99) (7.99)
Adjustments - - -
Depreciation expense - (7.99) (7.99)
Balance as at 31st March 2021 - (15.98) (15.98)
Adjustments - - -
Depreciation expense - (4.01) (4.01)
Balance as at 31st March 2022 - (19.99) (19.99)
(Rs in Lakhs)
Leasehold Leasehold
Net Carrying Amount Land Buildings TOTAL
Balance as at 31st March 2020 - 12.00 12.00
Additions - - -
Disposals/ Adjustments - - -
Depreciation expense - (7.99) (7.99)
Adjustments - - -
Balance as at 31st March 2021 - 4.01 4.01
Additions
Disposals/ Adjustments - - -
Depreciation expense - (4.01) (4.01)

Adjustments
Balance as at 31st March 2022

(refer Note No 49)
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NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

5. Goodwill {Rs in Lakhs)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Balance at beginning of year 512.60 512.60

Balance at end of year 512.60 512.60

6. Other Intangible assets
Carrying amounts of

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Trademark 3,004.66 3,004.66
Computer Software 27.60 17.80

3,032.26 3,022.46
Cost Trademark Computer Software Total
Balance at March 31, 2020 3,004.66 53.31 3,057.97
Additions - 5.38 5.38
Balance at March 31, 2021 3,004.66 58.69 3,063.35
Additions - 16.50 16.50
Balance at March 31, 2022 3,004.66 75.19 3,079.85
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Trademark Computer Software Total
Balance at March 31, 2020 - (35.76) (35.76)
Amortisation expense - (5.13) (5.13)
Balance at March 31, 2021 - (40.89) (40.89)
Amortisation expense - (6.70) _(6.70
Balance at March 31, 2022 - (47.59) (47.59)
Carrying amount Trademark Computer Software Total
Balance at March 31, 2020 3,004.66 17.55 3,022.21
Additions - 5.38 5.38
Amortisation expense - (5.13) (5.13)
Balance at March 31, 2021 3,004.66 17.80 3,022.46
Additions - 16.50 16.50
Amortisation expense - (6.70) (6.70)
Balance at March 31, 2022 3,004.66 27.60 3,032.26

The Company has opted for the indefinite useful life for its Trademarks on the basis of renewal of legal rights and the management's intention to keep it
perpetually. As required the same is tested for impairment annually.

Goodwill and Trademark cash-generating unit

The Company is into Waterproofing Services business which is the only cash generating unit.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews carrying amount of Goodwill and Trademark to determine whether there is any indication that
Goodwill and Trademark has suffered any impairment foss.

Recoverable amount of Goodwill and Trademark exceeds the carrying amount of Goodwill and Trademark in the books as on 31st March 2022, Further there
are no internal and external indications of impairment of Goodwill and Trademark.

As a result, no impairment loss on Goaodwill and Trademark is required to be recognised.

Projected cashflows

The recoverable amount of this cash-generating unit is determined based on a value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management for next year, estimate prepared for the next four years and a discount rate of 11.92% per annum (as at March 31, 2021:
11.01% per annum). ‘

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the same expected gross margins and raw materials price inflation throughout the budget period.
The cash flows beyond that five-year period have been extrapolated using a steady 5% per annum (as at 31st March, 2021: 5% per annum) growth rate. The
management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not cause the aggregate
carrying amount of goodwill and trademark to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.

The key assumptions used in the value in use calculations are as follows:

Budgeted sales growth :

Sales growth is assumed at 14.1% (CAGR), in line with current year projections. The values assigned to the assumption reflect past experience and are
consistent with the managements' plans for focusing operations in these markets. The management believes that the planned sales growth per year for the next
five years is reasonably achievable.

Raw materials price inflation

Forecast for Material cost growth is assumed at 11% considering impact of commodity cost inflation and other factors.

Other budgeted costs

Forecast for Direct cost growth is assumed at 10% considering impact of inflation and other factors. Other fixed costs are in line with the current year's growth.

*




NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

7 Non Current Investments
_ i (RsIn Lakns)
As at As at
o _ - March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Investment in Subsidiary (Fully paid up)
Unquoted Investment in Equity Instruments of Subsidiary (at cost) (Refer Nole 53)
11,85,000 (Previous Year 11,85,000) Equity shares of LKR of 10 each of
Nina Lanka Construction Technologies Pvt Ltd 52,77 52.77
43,560 (Previous Year 43,560) Equity shares of Taka of 100 each of Nina
Percept Bangladesh Pyt Ltd. 37.31 37.31
TOTAL 90.08 90.08
8 Other Financial Assets - Non-Current
(Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Security depoasits 56.76 51.15
Fixed Deposits with Bank (Under Lien) 11.08 0.30
Retention Money Receivable 2,969.43 2,379.28
{For ageing refer Note 17.2}
TOTAL 3,036.26 2,430.73
9 Income Tax Assets (net) - Non-Current
- {Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, consldered good
Advarnice Income Tax {Nat of Provislons Rs.1471.87 Lakhs, Previous year Rs. 1471.87Lakhs) 961.26 512.67
TOTAL 961.25 512.57
10 Other Assets - Non-Current
(Rs in Lakhs)
-As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, considered good ™
Balance with Government Authorities® ] 84.19 100.23
TOTAL 84.19 100.23
* Mainly comprises of VAT refund receivable
11 Inventories {At lower of cost and net reallzable value)
N (Rsin Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Stock of Material 3,861.44 2,985.24
(Including Goods in Transit: Rs. 304.91 Lakhs, Previous year - Rs. 256.28 Lakhs)
Work-in-Progress 17.156 17.70
TOTAL 3,878.69 3,002.94
(i) The cost of invenloriss recognised as an expenses during the year was Rs. 15,131.68 Lakhs (for the year ended March 31,
2021: Rs. 10,717.25 Lakhs).
(ii) The mode of valuation of inventories has been disclosed in note 2.11
12 Current Investments
(Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31,2022 Mareh 31,2021
Current portion of Non Current Investment in Deposits
Unquoted Investment in Deposit with (at amortised cost)
IL & FS Financials Services Limited 1566.00 155.00
Infrastructure Leasing & Financials Services Limited 725.00 725.00
880.00 880.00
Less : Impairment in the Value of Investments in Deposits (880.00) (880.00)

b

TOTAL -
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Notes forming part of the financlal statements

Trade Receivables

Current

{Rs in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2022

Unsecured, considered good
Considered Doubtful

Significant Increase in Credit Risk
Credit impaired

Less: Allowance for Expected Credit Loss

10,844.35 11,133.92
3,492.34 2,002.93
7 14,336.69 13,136.85
3,492.34 2,002.93
Total 10,844.35 11,133.82

The average credit period on sales of goods and services is 90 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables.
Before accepting any new customer, the Company performs detailed background check to assess the potential customer's credit

quality. The credit quality of customers are reviewed on a regular basis. Of the trade receivables balance as at March 31, 2022, an
amount of Rs.2,830.26 Lakhs (as at March 31, 2021 of Rs. 3,311.66 Lakhs) is due from Larsen & Tubro Ltd, New Consolidated
Consliruction Company Ltd, Shapoorji Palloanji & Company Pyt Ltd and Cowtown Infotech Services Pvt Ltd, the company’s largest

customers. There are no other customers who represent more than 5% of the total balance of trade receivables.
The Company has used a praclical expedient by computing the expacled credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a

provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking
information. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given
in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

For the year 2021-22
Ageing (days)

0-90

91-180

181-270

271-360

366-545

546-729

>730

Legal Receivables
Opening BTA (Refer Note 51)

For the year 2020-21

Ageing (days)

0-90 ;
91-180

181-270

271-360

366-545

546-729

>730

Legal Receivables

Opening BTA (Refer Nole 51)
Total

Recelvables As at

Expected credit loss (%) March 31, 2022

11.27 7,428.16
9.51 2,400.76
45.03 34613
28,37 561.90
19.42 594.65
18.88 307.60
100.00 1,843.49
100.00 591.11
- 262,89
14,336.69

Receivables As at

Expected credit loss (%% March 31, 2021
4.9; 5,115,
371 241562
26.78 504.62
14.39 646.08
12,77 1,318.37
18.73 1,435.38
60.10 1,099.76
100.00 334.47
- 26619

13,136.85

—_— VeI

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Total Allowance for Expected Credit Loss 3,492.34 2,002.83
(Rs in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
lavament in expacted credit loss allowanc
Balance at beginning of the year 2,002.93 1,268.30
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated at 1,673.12 734.63
litetime expected credit losses
Less : Write off of Bad Debts 183.71 -
Balance at end of the year 3,492.34 2.002.83

B




NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

A formal commercial policy has been framed and credit facilities are given to customers within framework of policy. As credit risk management mechanism, a Policy for doubtful
debt has been formulated and risk exposure related to receivable are identified based on criteria mentioned in policy and provided for credit loss allowance.
Trade Receivable includes dues from Private companies/Firms in which any Director is a director or a member. (Refer Note-42)

Trade Receivables Agelng Schedule:

Outslan:l:qg as on March 31, 2022

Particulars Less thar “ Fe2 2-1 above J
Not Due| 6 months| 1year yaare! years years. Tots!
(i} Undisputed Trade receivables — good 5,020.46 4.721.45 - - - - 9.741.91
4) Undisputed Teade Recarables — considerod doubtful - - 904.68 797.05 1,048.34 74342 |  3.493.18
{iii) Disputed Trade Receivables considered good 9.50 69.44 335 105.20 244.98 77.91 510.38
iv) Disputed Trads Receivables cansidered doubtful - - 7.05 32.08 112.90 438.20 591,21
Outstanding as on March 31. 2021
Particutars Less than 8 months - 12 23 abave 3 [
NolDue| g manths 1 year years  |years years | Total
(i) Undispated Trade recatvatios - consideted good 3.269,57 4,261.40 - - - - | 753087
§) Undsputed Trade Receraties — considerad doubiful - - 1,150.74 273284 640.60 581.04 | 5.10519 |
iii) Dispuled Trade Receivables considesed good - - 0.52 4184 108.99 13.87 | 166.22
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables considered doubtful : 2 0.03 nl 37.01 26032 | 33047
14  Cash and Cash Equivalents
{Rs in Lakhs}
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Cash on Hand 0.04 0.08
Balances wilh banks
{n Current Account 6.80 76.66
Cash and Cash Equivalents as per Balance Sheet 6.84 75.72
Bank Overdraft (Refer Note 23) (5,424.23) (7,859.87)
Cash and cash equivalents as per Statement of Cash Flow (5,417.39) {7,784.15)
15  Bank Balances Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
(Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
In Escrow Account 3.69 0.89
Fixed Deposils with Bank {Under Lien} 3.99 3.76
TOTAL 7.68 4.45
16 Loans
(Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
. _ March31,2022  March31,2021
Loans and Advances to Employees™ 114.69 129.60
TOTAL 114.69 129.60

* For Business purpose

T




NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financial statements

17 Other Financial Assets - Current
{Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits 75.16 43.77
Uncertified Revenue from Waorks Contract
Unsecured, considered good 5,609.86 5,675.69
Considered Doubtful 926.61 1,048.15
6,536.47 6,624.83
Less: Expected Credit Loss 926.61 1,049.15
5,609.86 5,575.68
Retention Monies Receivable
Unsecured, considered good 1,323.54 1.479.12
Considered Doubtful 817.67 416.36
Significant Increase in Credit Risk - -
Credit Impaired - -
2,141.21 1,895.48
Less: Expected Credit Loss 817.67 416,36
1,323.64 1,479.12
TOTAL 7,008.56 7,008.57
17.1 Uncertifled Revenue from Works Contract Ageing:
Outstanding as on March 31, 2022 |
Parliculars Less than| 6 months « 1-2 2.3 above3 ‘
6 months 1year years years years Total|
() Undisputed Uncertified Revenie = considered good 523526 | - - |- - |'52%2%
ii) Undisputed Uncertified Revenue — considered doubtful - 696.91 285.65 218.61 90.04 | 1,301.21
ill) Disputed Uncertified Revenue considerad good - - - - - &
{iv) Disputed Unceriified Revarus cansidered daubiful : - —=JL - - S
OQutstanding as on March 31, 2021
Particulars Less than| 6 months - 1-2 2-3) aboved
6 months 1 year years years years Total
(i} Undisputed Uncertified Revenue — considered good —saseea| - | P — - [ 53seet
(i} Undisputed Uncertified Revenue — considered doubtful - 321.85 805.97 74.22 64,15 | 1,266.19
l:ﬂi} DI‘SM Uncertified Ravenue considered good - - - - - -
iv) Disputed Uncerified Ravenue considered doubtful - - - - - -
17.2 Retention Monles Recelvable Ageing {Current and Non-Current):
— OutstandingasonMarch31,2022
Particulars Less than| 6 months - 1-2 2-3] above 3|
Not Due| 6 months 1 year| years years, years Total
(i) Undisputed Retention — considered 3,104.68 201.01 223.42 - - - 3,529.11
(i} Undisputed Retention — considered - - - 258.93 218.90 844,22 | 1,322.05
(i) Undisputed Retenlion considered good = - - - - - - -
|(iv) Undisputed Retention Revenue considered doubtful 2.99 - - 6.37 46.07 204.06 259.49
_Outstanding as on March 31, 2021 =
Particulars Less than| 6 months - 1-2 2-3| above 3
Not Due 6 months| 1 year! years years years Total
(i) Undisputed Retention — considered 2,472.94 175.74 128.54 - - - 2.778.22
(i} Undisputed Retention — considered - - 312.22 374.89 627.37 | 1.314.48
(ii} Undisputed Retention considered good - . - - - -
(iv) Undisputed Retention Revenue considered doubtful 11.01 - - 26.92 7.38 136.77 182.06
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NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of the financlal statements

Other Current Assets

(Rs in Lakhs)

As at
Mareh 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Unsecured, consldered good
Advances to vendors™
Prepaid Expenses
Balances with Govermnment Authorities*
TOTAL
* Mainly comprises of GST receivable and Custom Duty
** For Business purpose

P

262,60
100.81
__1,261.68
1,626.09

343.92
37.79
868.50
1,260.21



NINA PERCEPT PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of the financial statements

19 Equity Share Capital
(Rs in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Authorised Capital :

11,100,000 (Previous Year 11,100,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 1,110.00 1,110.00

TOTAL 1,110.00 1,110.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital :
1,179,999 (Previous Year 1,179,999) Equity Shares of Re 10 each, fully paid-up 118.00 118.00

TOTAL 118.00 118.00
Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Number of Shares Rs in Lakhs Number of Shares  Rs in Lakhs

Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year 1,179,999 118.00 1,179,899 118.00
Outstanding at the end of the year 1,179,999 118.00 1,179,999 118.00

. Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares
The Company hasa single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the

company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to receive dividend as declared from time to time. The voting rights of an equity
shareholders are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the company. On winding up of the company, remaining assets of the
company after distribution of all preferential amounts will be distributed in proportion to the number of equity shares held. The Company has not
declared any dividend during the year.

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company:

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No. of Shares held % of Holding No. of Shares held % of Holding
Pidilite Industries Ltd (Holding Company) 879,999 74.58 879,999 74.58
Mehul Parikh (Held as a partner of Jupiter Waterproofing
Services) 300,000 25.42 300,000 25.42
. Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
Shares held by promoters at the March 31, 2022 % Change during
S.No |Promoter Name No. of Shares %of total shares the year
1|Pidilite Industries Ltd (Holding Company) 879,999 74.58 Nil
2 Mehgl Parikh (Held as a partner of Jupiter Waterproofing 300,000 25.42 Nil
Services)
Shares held by promoters at the March 31, 2021 % Change during
S.No |Promoter Name No. of Shares %of total shares the year
1|Pidilite Industries Ltd (Holding Company) 879,999 74.58 3.05
Mehyl Parikh (Held as a partner of Jupiter Waterproofing 300,000 25.42 Nil
Services) .

. The Company does not have any stock option plans.

ke
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Other Equity

(Rs in Lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

{i) Securitles Premlum Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 8,666.66 8,666.66
Securities Premium Reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The Reserve is utilised
in accordance with the provision of the Companies Act, 2013,
Closing Balance 8,666.66 B.656.66
(li) Capital Reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 582.00 582.00
Capital Reserve represents excess of net assets aquired on account of merger. It is not available for
distribution to shareholder as dividend.
Closing Balance 582.00 582.00
{ili) Retalned Earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 2421.76 5,170.17
Add: Loss for the year {2,693.39) {2,786.09}
Add: Other Comprehansive Income / (Loss) (net of lax) (46.76) 37.67
This Reserve reprasents the cumulative profits of the Company and can'be utilised in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
Closing Balance (318.40) 2,421.75
TOTAL 8,930.26 11,670.41
21 Provisions - Non Current
(Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for Employee Benefils
Gratuity (Refer Note 43) 299.87 246.70
TOTAL 295,87 246.70
22 Deferred Tax (Assets) / Liabilities (Net) (Refer Note 45)
(RS in Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Tax effect of items canstituting Deferred Tax Liabilities
Intanglble Assets 779.91 747.01
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Liabililies (A) 779.91 747.01
Tax effect of items constituting Deferred Tax Assets
Defined benefit obligation 69.30 45.38
Trade receivables 1,084.74 608.89
Property, Plant and equipment 166.50 152.47
Unabsorbed Tax losses 1,116.94 655.14
Tax effect of items conslituting Deferred Tax Assets {B) 2,437.38 1,461.88
TOTAL (A-B) {1657.47) (714.87)
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23 Borrowings - Current
(Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Secured - at amorlised cost
Loans repayable on demand from Bank - {Refer Note (i) below)
Working Capital Demand Loan 5,126.26 1,500.00
Bank Overdraft 5,424.23 7.859.87
Amount due on factaring from NBFC (Refer Note (ii) below) 65373 185.21
TOTAL 11,204.22 9,525.08
(i) Secured by first charge by way of hypothecation of lhe company’s entire stocks of materials, such other moveabla's including book-
debts, outstanding monies, receivables, bath present and future, in a form and manner satisfactory to the bank, ranking pari passu with
other participating banks.
(ii) Secured by a charge over cerlain trade receivable of the Company.
The terms of repayment of borrowing as stated below:
As at March 31, 2022
,\S,; Particulars 5 Lﬁg::gitng Terms of Repayment | Rate of Interest
1 _|Working Capital Demand Loan 5,126.26 [Payable on Demand 8.00% |
2 |Bank Overdraft 5,424.23 |Payable on Demand 8.20%
Varied balween April 1,
3 |Amount due on factoring from NBFC-Centrum Finance 171.05 [2022 to Oct 20, 2022 13.00%
Varied between April 1,
4 _[Amount dus on factoring from NBFC-SBI 482.68 |2022 to Jun 30, 2022 6.80%
As al March 31, 2021
,\sl:;" Particulars o Am°:;:_.g Terms of Repayment Rate of Interest
1_|Working Capital Bemand Loan 1.500,00 |Payable on Demand 8.00%
| 2 |Bank Overdraft 7,859.87 |Payable on Demand 8.20%
Varied between April 1,
3 |Amount due on factoring from NBFC-Cenirum Finance 165.21 {2021 to Oct 20, 2021 13.00%
24  Trade Payables
{Rs in Lakhs})
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade Payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (Refer Note 47) 1,098.89 290.19
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre and small enterprises 8,743.45 5,496.77
TOTAL 9,842.34 5766.98
Trade Payables Agelng Schedule:
o) ding as on March 31, 2022
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 2-3| above 3
Not Due_l year years years yeaLsJ Total|
(i} Micro enterprises, small enterprises and medium enterprises (MSME) 1,082.66 16.23 - - - 1.098.89
(i} Others 5,768.61 2,430.44 202.15 229.05 113.20 | 8,743.45
{iii} Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - -
{iv) Disputed Dues -Others - - - - - -
Outstanding as on March 31, 2021
Particulars Less than 1-2 - above 3
Not Dua| 6 monihs years years years Tota_l|
i} Micro enterprises, small enterprises and medium enterprises (MSME) 280.59 9.60 - - - 290.19
(ii) Others 2,686.66 1,707.96 685.65 304.58 111,92 | 5486.77
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - - -
iv} Disputed Dues -Others - - - - - -

b
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25,1 Lease Llabllities-Current

B (R In Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Laase Liability Payable - 3.88
TOTAL - 3.88

25.2 Other Flnanclals Liabilities - Current

{Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Employee related Liabililies 484,69 387.48
Retention Payable 199.96 190.54
Payables towards BTA (Refer Note 51} 330.68 321.55
Other Payables - Fareign currency forward contracts (Refer Note 44 (vii)) - 1.40
Liabilities for Expenses 427.49 671.11
TOTAL 1.422.82 1,572.08

26 Other Llabilities - Current
{Rs in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advance from customers 1,190.92 1,293.28
Statutory Remittances* 121.60 108.46
TOTAL 1,312.62 1,401.74

* Mainly comprises of TDS and GST payables.

27  Provisions - Current

{Rs in Lakhs}
As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Provision for Employee Benefits

Gratuity (Refer Nota 43) 86.18 44.32
Compensated absences 36.78 37.77
Provislon for Warranty Expense (Refer Note 50) 187.42 177.42
TOTAL 309.38 259.51

The provision for warranty expense represents the value of the directors’ best estimates of future outflow of economic benefits that will be
required under Company abligation for warranties in respect of waterproofing services as per contract with customers. The estimates have
been made on the basis of historical warranty trend and may vary as a result of new materials, altered pre for other events affecting
product/service quality.

28  Current Tax Llabllity (Net)
{Rs in Lakhs)

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Unsecured, consldered good
Provision for Income Tax (Net of Advance Tax Rs 806.48 Lakhs, Previous year Rs. 806.48Lakhs) 38.09 34,59

TOTAL 38.09 34.59
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29  Revenue From Operations

(Rs in Lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

a) Details of revenue from contracts with customers (net of taxes)”

Sales of Products (Chemicals) - Fixed Price Contracts

Local
Export

Sale of Services - Time and Material Contracts*™
Certified Revenue from Works Contract
Uncertified Revenue from Works Contract

At end of the year

At beginning of the year

TOTAL

470.07 275.25
57.31 10.67
25,297.09 18,861.33
5,609.86 5,575.68
5,575.68 7.060.37
34.18 (1,484.69)
25,858.65 17,662.56

*The Company disaggregates revenue from contracts with customers by type of contracts and timing of recognition. The Company believes that
this disaggregation best depicts how the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of its revenues and cash flows are affected by industry, market

and other economic factors.

**Sale of services consists of services to Residential, Industrial and Commercials sectors.

b) Impairment loss

There were no impairment losses recognised on any contract asset / trade receivable in the reporting period except for as disclosed in Note 13.

30 Other Income

(Rs in Lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Interest on: (at Amortised cost)

Bank Deposits 0.99 0.02
Other non-operating Income:
Scrap Sales 7.30 7.43
Insurance claims 45.10 22.02
Other Miscellaneous Income 0.06 -
TOTAL 53.45 29.47
31 Cost of Materials Consumed
(Rs in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Inventory at the beginning of the year 2,985.24 3,649.18
Add : Purchases 15,581.77 9,888.95
18,567.01 13,538.13
Less : Inventory at the end of the year 3,861.44 2,985.24
TOTAL 14,705.57 10,552.89
32  Purchases of Stock-in-Trade
(Rs in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Chemicals 425.56 149.21
TOTAL 425,56 149.21

s
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33  Change in Inventories of Work in Progress
(Rs in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Inventories at end of the year
Work-in-Progress 17.15 17.70
(A) 17.15 17.70
Inventories at beginning of the year
Work-in-Progress 17.70 32.85
(B) 17.70 32.85
TOTAL (B-A) 0.55 15.15
34  Direct Man Power & Site Expenses
(Rs in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Manpower Cost at Sites 5,357.53 3,829.29
Site Establishment Expenses 1,242.86 997.28
TOTAL 6,600.39 4,826.57
35 Employee Benefits Expense
(Rs in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Salaries and Wages 3,041.08 2,789,36
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds (Refer Note 43) 123.11 110.14
Gratuity Expense (Refer Note 43) 49.03 55.54
Staff Welfare Expenses 21.22 8.23
TOTAL 3,234.44 2,963.27
36  Finance Costs
(Rs in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest expense on:
Bank overdrafts and borrowings 851.14 638.22
Delayed / deferred payment of Statutory Dues 9.33 6.55
Interest on Leased Assets 0.13 0.89
TOTAL 860.60 645.66
37 Depreciation and Amortization Expense
(Rs in Lakhs)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreciation (Refer Note 4) 260.10 287.61
Amortization (Refer Note 6) 6.70 5.13
Depreciation on right of use assets (Refer Note 4a) 4.01 7.99
TOTAL 270.81 300.73

x
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Other Expenses

(Rs in Lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Rent (Refer Note 49)
Insurance
Repairs & Maintenance:
Plant and Machinery
Others
Electricity Expenses
Advertisement and Publicity
Legal, Professional and Consultancy fees
Communication Expenses
Printing and Stationery
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses
Rates & Taxes
Provision for Warranty Expenses (Refer Note 50)
Allowance for Doubtful Debts:
Provision for current year
Léss : Written off during the year

Bad Debts

Allowance for Doubtful Retention Monies
Brokerage and Commission

Payments to Auditor (Refer Note 48)
Directors Sitting Fees

Corporate Sacial Responsibility Expenses (Refer Note 52)

Bank Charges

Net loss on foreign currency transactions and translation
Net Loss arising on financial liability designated as at FVTPL

Miscellaneous expenses

%

186.10 186.51
66.88 44.21
44.73 18.08

3.72 1.91
20.60 13.00
16.51 7.60

466.47 178.46
36.49 34.80
11.84 10.55
85.21 71.98
35.76 7.61
60.00 50.00

1,673.12 736.12
183.71 2
1,489.40 736.12
183.71 -

401.31 264.93

4.85 1.57
23.00 21.25
4.00 3.70
16.64 53.17

114.55 87.87

61.61 43,67

) 1.40
101.07 43.05
3,434.45 1,891.44
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Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
(Rs in Lakhs)

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

A) Contingent liabilities not provided for:
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts comprise:
2) Income Tax demand against the Company not provided for and relating to issues of deduction and allowances in respect of 70.50 70.50
which the Company is in appeal
b) Sales Tax (VAT and CST) & GST claims disputed by the Company relating to issues of declaration forms and classifications 79.26 55.36
B) Commitments:
Estimated amount of contracts, net of advances, remaining to be executed for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment 36.15 3.95
and not provided for.
40 Segment information
The Company has determined its operating segment as waterproofing services, based on the information reported to the chief operating decision maker
(CODM i.e. Managing Director of the Company) in accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standard 108 - 'Operating Segment Reporting’,
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.
41 Earning Per Share (EPS)
(Rs in Lakhs)
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Basic and Diluted:
Loss for the year (2,693.39) (2,786.09)
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic and diluted EPS 1,179,999 1,179,999
Par value per share in Rs. 10.00 10.00
Earning per share (Basic and Diluted) in Rs. (228.25) (236.11)
Note: The Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of the periods presented.
42 Related Party Transactions

List of Related Parties {with whom transactions have taken place during current and previous year)
(i) Holding Company

Pidilite Industries Ltd Holding Company
(ii) Subsidiary Company (Refer Note 53)
Nina Lanka Construction Technologies Pvt Ltd, Sri Lanka Subsidiary
Nina Percept (Bangladesh) Pvt. Ltd. Subsidiary
(ili) Key Management Personnel
Shri Mehul K. Parikh Managing Director
(iv) Significant influence by Holding Company / Director of the Company
a. Nina Concrete Systems Pvt Ltd Significant Influence of Managing Director
b. Pyramid Waterproofing Services LLP Significant Influence of Managing Director
c. Impact Floors India Pvt. Ltd. Significant Influence of Managing Director
d. Dr. Fixit Institute of Structural Protection & Rehabilitation Significant Influence of Directors
e. Pidilite Lanka (Private) Ltd Fellow Subsidiary
f. Hybrid Coatings Fellow Subsidiary
g. Building Envelope Systems India Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary
h. Pidilite Innovation Center Fellow Subsidiary
i. ICA Pidilite Pvt Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary
j. Cipy Polyurethanes Pvt Ltd Fellow Subsidiary
k. Percept Engineers Pvt Ltd. Significant Influence of Whole Time Director
. Smart Tech Services Significant Influence of Whole Time Director
m. Pidilite MEA Chemicals LLC Fellow Subsidiary
n. Pidilite Grupo Puma Manufacturing Ltd. Fellow Subsidiary

hy
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v) Transactions with Related Parlies for the year ended March 31, 2022 are as follows:

(Rs in Lakhs}

Nature of Tr ti For the year ended Mar 31, 2022 For the year ended Mar 31, 2021
Significant Signiflcant
Influence of Influence of
. KMPiClose Key KMP/Close Key
c’::‘:d':g Subsidiary Sul'::II;Tav:ies member of | Managerial Total c'::rl\dI:r? Subsidiary Su:::tli?:vries member of | Managerlal Total
pany Key Personnel pany Key Personnel
Management Management
Personnel Personnel
a |Managerfal Remunaration
Managing Director - - - - 137.37 137.37 - - - s 145,99 145.99
Whole Time Director - - - - - - - - - - 104.98 104.98
Total - - - - 137.37 137.37 - - - - 250.97 250.97
b |Sales
Pidilite Industries Ltd. 343.79 - - - - 343.79 213.66 - - - - 213.66
Nina Lanka Construction
Technologies Put. Ltd. N S0 . . . 5730 . 10.67 N - - 1067
ICA Pidilite Pvt. Ltd. - - - - - - - - 3.43 - - 3.43
Pidilite Grupo Puma
Manufacturing Lid. - - 18.63 - - 18.63 - - 572 - - 572
Nina Concrete Systems Pvt.
Ltd - - - - - - - - - 2,77 - 2,77
Total 343.79 57.30 18.63 - - 419.72 213.66 10.67 9.15 2.77 - 236.25
c |Pur and Other Related
Services
Pidilite Industries Ltd. 2,180.11 - - - - 2,180.11 | 1,041.36 - - - - 1,041.36
Pidilite Innavation Centre Pvt.
Ltd. - - 53.20 - - 53.20 - - - - - -
Hybrid Coatings - - 192.47 - - 192.47 - - 193.25 - - 193.25
Building Envelope Systems N
India Ltd - 831.89 - - 831.89 - - 619.19 - - 619.19
Cipy Polyurethanes Pvt. Ltd. - - 1,526.64 - - 1.526.64 - - 966.01 - - 966.01
Pyramid Waterproofing »
Services LLP - - 5,244.37 - 5,244.37 - - - 3,647.75 - 3,647.75
Smart Tech Services - - - - - - - - - 353.16 - 353.16
Pidillte MEA Chemicals LLC - - - - 9.35 9.35
Impact Floors India Pvt. Ltd. - - - 15.62 - 15.62 - - - 2.95 - 2.95
Dr. Fixit Institute of Structural
Protaction & Rehabilitation ) B 1.00 3 1.00 B 329 : N = 120
Total 2,180.11 - 2,604.20 5,260.99 - 10,045.30 | 1,041.36 1.20 1,787.80 3,903.86 - 6,734.22
d |Rent Pald
Nina Concrete Systems Pvt.
Lid - - - 2.86 - 2.86 - - - 2.20 - 2.20
Total - - - 2.86 - 2.86 - - - 2,20 - 2,20
e |Outstanding Balances :
f - Trade Recelvables
Pidilile Industries Ltd 30.38 - - - - 30.38 76.74 - - - - 76.74
Nina Lanka Construction
Technologies Py, Ltd, - - 67.97 - - 67.97 - - 25.76 - - 25.76
Pidilite Grupo Puma
Manufacturing Ltd, - - 0.53 - - 0.53 - - 6.80 - - 6.80
30.38 - 68.50 - - 98.88 76.74 - 32.66 - - 109.30
Ii - BTA Payables
Nina Concrete Systems Pvt. 321.55
Ltd - - - 330.68 - 330.68 - - - 321.55 -
- - - 330.68 - 330.68 - - - 321.55 - 321.55
ili - Trade Payables
Pidilite Industries Ltd. 2,408.70 - - - - 2,408.70 | 1,034.02 - - - - 1,034.02
Hybrid Coatings - - 60.72 - - 60.72 - - 10.17 - - 10.17
Building Envelope Systems
Jndia Lid, - - 140.57 - - 140.57 - - 132.30 - - 132.30
Cipy Polyurethanes Pvt. Ltd. - - 665.18 - - 665.18 - - 855.30 - - 856.30
Pyramid Waterproofing
Sarvices LLP - - - 1,001.01 - 1,001.01 - - - 908.11 - 908.11
Smart Tech Services - - - 6.50 - 6.50 - - - 6.50 6.50
Dr. Fixit Institute of Structural
Protection & Rehabilitation - - N i - 142 N - : 7.20 N s
Impact Floors India Pvt. Ltd. - - - {0.61) - (0.61) - - - 24.37 - 24.37
2,408.70 - 866.47 1,008.32 - 4,283.49 | 1,034.02 - 997.77 946.18 - 2,977.97

ke
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Employee Benefits
The Company has classified various employee benefits as under:
(A) Defined Contribution Plans

(a) Provident Fund

{b) State Defined Contribulion Plan - Employers' Contribution to Employees’ State Insurance

The Provideni Fund and the State Defined Contribuiion Plans are operaled by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner as applicable for all eligible employees. Under the

hemes, the Company
the Income Tax Authorilies,

The Camg hasr d the following ts in the

of Profit and Loss {Refer Note 35):

is required o contribute a specified perceniage of payroll cost to (he retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits.These funds are recagnised by

(A in Lakhs)

March 31, 2022 i |

121.38

March 31, 202
107.84

1.73

2,30

123.1%

110,14

{B)} Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity

{C) Other Benefits
Compensated absences

Defined bonefit plans —as per actuarial valuation (Rs in Lakhs)
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Change in the present value of defined benefit obligation
1_|Present valug of defined benefit obligation al the beginning of the year 291.02 324.3
2 |Current service cost 32,74 37.14
3 |Interest costincoma 16.29 18.40
Remeasurements {gains)/ losses includad in OCI
s in demographic assumplion {7.67} -
es in financial assumption (2.97) 6.06
73.14 (56.41)
{16.50) @:1
386.05 291.02
386.05 291.02
386.0 291.02
86.1 44,32
5|Mon current portion of the above (Refer Note 21) 299.8 246.70
Actuarial assumptiona
| 1IDiscount rate 6.29%) 8.06%
2|Attrition rate 20.00% 8%
3|Salary growth rate Next year 8%, Next year7..’7‘7/o_,'
thereafter 10% thereafler 10%
Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below
370.16 78.90
403.43 04.27
402.69 03.66
370.1 79.20
3828 300.28
int decrease affrition rate 389.4 281.34
IExgnnu recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
Current service cost 32,74 37.14
|2 |Inmea: cosl on benefit obligation (Net) 16.29 18.40 |
Tolal expsnses included in employee benefils e eler Note 35) 49.03 55.54
|
7.87)] 0.00
{2.98)] 6.07
7314 (56.41)
5[Recognised in other comprehensive incoma 62.49 (50.34)
Expected Future Cashilows
Year 1 86.18 44.32
| [Year? 56. 49.15
| lYear3 52. 35.77
Year 4 45, 34.02
Year 40.11 30.16
Year 6 o 10 148.01 119.16
Above 10 years 102.58 106.40
Average Expected Future Working Life (yoars] | 4.81 | 534 |
The estimate of future salary i idered in ial i takes account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant f; h as supply and

demand in the employment market,
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44 Financial Instrument
(i) Capltal Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as going concem while maximising the retumn to stakenolders through the optimisation of the debt and
The capital structure of lhe Company consists of net debts (borrowing detailed in note 23 offset by cash and bank balance in note 14 and 15) and total equity of the Company.

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratia at end of the reporting period was as follow:
(Rs in Lakhs|
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Borrowings (Refer Note 23} 11,204.22 9,625.08
Cash and Bank balances (Refer Note 14 and 15) {14.52) (80.17)
Net Borrowings 11.189.70 9.444.92
Total Equity 9,048.26 11.788.41
Net Debts to Equity Ratio 124% 80%
{Il) Categories of financial instr
(Rs In Lakhs)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Financlal assets
Measured at amortised cost
Cash and bank balances 14,52 80.17
Trada receivables 10,844.35 11,133.92
Loans 114.69 129.60
Invastments 20.08 90.08
Other financial assels 10,044.81 9,529.30
Total Financial Assels 21,108.45 20,963.08
Financlal Habilities
Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings 11,204.22 9,525.08
Trada Payables 9,842.34 5,786.96
Leasa liablities - 3.88
Financial liability carried at Fair Value through Profil or Loss (FVTPL) - 1.40
Olher financial liabilites 1,422.82 1,570.68
Total Financlal Liabllities 22,469.38 16,888.00 |
(iill) Fi lal risk t objectives
Liquldity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligation as they falt due. The Company's financial llabilities as on March 31, 2022
is Rs, 22,469.38 Lakhs comprising of short term funding from NBFC and bank, bearing interest rate range from 8.0% to 12% repayable on demand. Significant portion of the
Company's financial assets as on March 31, 2022 Rs. 21,108.45 Lakhs comprise mainly of Trade Recelvables aggregating to Rs.10,844.35 Lakhs, Uncerlified Revenue from
work contracts of Rs.5,609.86 Lakhs and Retention Monies Receivables Rs. 4,292.97 Lakhs.

Credit risk management
Credit risk refers 1o risk that the counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has big reputed corporate as

customer based due to which credit risk is very less. Significant portion of the Company's financial assets as at March 31, 2022 comprise of trade receivable, retention money
receivable and unbilled revenue which are held with reputed and credit worthy reputed corporate customers.

{Iv) Market risk
The Company’s activities expose it primarily to the financial risk of changes in foreign currency exchange rates (see note (v) below), volume of such activities is insignificant, as
compared to INR. The Company enters into forward foreign exchange contracts to manage its exposure to foreign currency risk of imports.

Foreign cuirency sensitlvity analysis
The Company undertakes fransactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchanga rate exposures are managed

utilising forward foreign exchange contracts.
The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period are as follows.

(In Lakhs)
FC value in Forelgn Currenc FC value In INR
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

{v]

Particulars

/Amounts payable in foreign currency on account of the following:
usb -

5.63 - 413.32

The Company is mainly exposed to ihe USD and EUR.
The following table details the Company’s sensitivity to a 2% increase and decrease against the relevant foreign currencies. 2% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign

currency risk intemnally to key management parsonnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 2% change in foreign currency rates. A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit of Rs. NIL Lakhs (As at March 31, 2021 : Rs. 8.27 Lakhs) as due to strengthening of INR by 2% against the relevant
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In Lakhs
USD jmpact
March 31, 2022 T March 31, 2021
Impact on profit or lass for the year (i) . | 8.27

(i) This is mainly attributable to the exposure outstanding on USD receivables and payables at the end of the reporting period.

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does not reflact

the exposure during the year.

Forward forelgn exchange contracts
It is the policy of the Company to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover foreign currency payments in USD and Euro. The Company enters in to contracts with

terms upto 120 days.

The company enters in to forward foreign exchange contracls to manage the risk associated with purchase transactions and cover the exposure of imports.

The following table details the forward foreign eurrency (FC) contract

s outstanding at the end of the re

period,

Outstanding contracts Average exchange rates {in Rs.) Foreign Currency (Rs. In Lakhs)
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
USD - Buy - 73.40 - 5.63
Outstanding contracts Nominal Amounts Falr value assets / (llabillties)
Rs. In Lakhs! Rs. In Lakhs!
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
USD - Buy - 413.32 - {1.40),

For previous year the line-items in the balance sheet that include the above are “Other financial liability” (Reter Note 25.2) and “Other Expenses” (Refer Note 38).
At March 31, 2022 the aggregate amount of loss/{gain) under forward foreign exchange contracts recognised in statement of profit and loss is NIL (as at March 31, 2021 Rs. 1.40

Lakhs).

{vl) Interest Rate RIsk Management

The company is exposed to interast rate risk because Company borrow funds at floating interest rate.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting

Interest rate risk Intemally to key management personnel and represents managements assessment of the reasonably possible change In interest rates.

If interest rate had been 50 basls points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the company's profit for the year ended March 31, 2022 would decrease /
increase by Rs. 52.75 Lakhs (for the year ended March 31, 2021 decrease / increase by Rs.46.80 Lakhs). This is mainly attributable to the Company's exposure to interest rate

The effective interest rate of the company is 9.5%.

s
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Notes forming part of the flnancial statements

{vil) Fair value measurements
This note providas information about how the Company determines fair values of various financial assets and financial liabilities.

Falr value of the Company's flnanclal assets and financial liabillties that are measured at falr value on a recurring basis
One of the Company'’s financial assels and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting pericd. The following table gives information about how the
fair values of these financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

(In Lakhs)
i Ique(s) and ke
Financial assets / financial liabilities Falr.valuelasiat l::lr val:e T DRSS
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021 SrArchy.
Foreign currency forward contracts - {1.40) Level 2 Mark to market values acquired from banks,
with whom company contracts

Falr value of the Company’s financial assets and financial llabllitles that are not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required)
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors consider that the camying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the financial statements

approximate their fair values.

(In Lakhs)
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Particulars Carrylng amount Falr value Carrylng amount Falr value
Flnanclal assets
incial assats camed at A C0S

Security Deposits 55.76 55.76| 51.15 51.15
Flxed Deposits with Bank (Under Lien) 11.06 11.06 0.30 0.30
Retention Monies Recsivables 2,969.43 2,969.43| 2,379.28 2,379.28
Total 3,036.26 3,036,25| 2,430.73 2,430.73
Financial liabilities - - - -

Mote : The management assessed thal Cash and Cash Equivalents, Cument portion of Mon Current Invesiments in doposits, Trade receivables, Trade payables, Current
Borrowings, Loans and Advances to Employees, Current Security Deposits, Current Retention Money receivables, Uncertified revenue from works contract, Employee related
liabilities, Retention deposits payable, Current Payables towards BTA and liabilities for expenses approximate their camying amounts fargely due to the short-term maturities of
these Instruments.

Falr value hlerarchy
The fair value hierarchy Is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and consists of the of the

= Level 1 — Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
» Level 2 — Inputs are other than quoted prices Included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
« Level 3 — Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions

that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

s
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Notes forming part of the financial statements

Taxes

Deferred Tax

2021- 2022

Deferred lax (assets)/liabilities in relation lo:

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the

accounting profit as follows:

For the year

For the year

w

ended ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Profit before tax from operations (3,620.27) (3,652.89)
25.17% 25.17%
Income tax expense calculated (911.15) (919.36)
Effect of expenses/income that are not deductible in deterinining
taxable profit 4,98 13.38
Others (20.71) 39.18
(926.88) (866.80)
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (926.88) (866.80)
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
For the year For the year
ended ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Tax arising on income and expenses recognised in other
comprehensive income:
Re-measurement of defined benefit obligation

15.73

(12.67)

Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

15.73

(12.67)

L

Opening Recognised in | Recognised in |Closing balance
Balance Profit and Loss Other
Comprehensive
Income

Property, plant and equipment (152.47) (14.03) - (166.50)
Intangible assets 747.01 32.90 - 779.91
Trade Receivable (608.89) (475.86) - (1084.74)
Defined benefit obligation (45.38) (8.19) (15.73) (69.30)
Tax losses (655.14) (461.70) - (1116.84)
Total (714.87) (926.88) (15.73) (1657.47)
2020- 2021
Deferred tax (assets)iabilities in relation to:

Opening Recognised in | Recognised in | Closing balance

Balance Profit or loss Other B

Comprehensive
Income
Property, plant and equipment (124.65) (27.82) - (152.47)
Intangible assets 674.97 72.04 - 747.01
Trade Receivable (3567.32) (251.57) - (608.89)
Defined benefit obligation (53.76) (4.31) 12.67 (45.38)
Tax losses - {655.14) - (655.14)
Total 139.24 (866.80) 12.67 (714.87)
Income Tax
Income tax recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss for the year
For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Current tax
In respect of the current year - -
Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (926.88) (866.80)
(926.88) (866.80)

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year relating
to continuing operations (926.88) (866.80)
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46 Ratios

a) Current Ratio = Current Assets divided by Current Liabilities

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Current Assets 23,485.80 22,695.41
Current Liabilities 24,129.37 18,583.84
Ratio 0.97 1.22
% Change from previous year -20%

Reason for change more than 25%: Not applicable

b} Debt Equity ratio = Total debt divided by Total equity where total debt refers to sum of current & non current

bbrrowings
Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Total Debl* 11,189.70 9.444.92
Shareholders Fund** 9,048.26 11,788.41
Ratio 124% 80%
% Change from previous year 54%

* Tolal Debl= Borrowings less Cash and Bank balances
** Shareholders fund = Equity Share Capital + Other Equily

Reason for change more than 25%:

Losses in the last

two years and delayed collection on account of Covid-19
disruption. The cash losses were funded through higher borrowing.

c) Debt Service Coverage Ratio (DSCR) = EBITDA divided by Interest on borrowings

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Loss before tax for the year {3,620.27) (3.652.89)
Add-Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses 270.81 300.73

Add-Finance Cost 860.60 645.66

Add-Net loss on foreign currency transactions and

translation (Note 38) S S0

Less-Other Income {53.45) {29.47)
EBITDA {2,480.70) {2,690.90)
Interest Cost on borrowings (Note 36] 851.14 638.22

Ratio (2.91) (4.22)
% Change from previous year 31%

Reason for change more than 25%:

Due to increase in working capital loan during the year,

d) Return on Equity Ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Average Shareholders Fund

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Loss for the year (3,620.27) (3,652.89)
Average Shareholders fund 10,418.33 13162.62
Ratio -35% -28%
% Change from previous year 25%

Losses were incurred due to sharp increase in material cost, Covid-19
disruption and higher provision on debts.

Reason for change more than 25%:

e) Inventory Tumover Ratio = Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) divided by Average Inventory

Partlculars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Cost of Goods Sold (COGS)*** 15,131.68 10.717.25
Average Inventory® 3,440.76 3,342.49
Ratio 4.40 3.21
% Change from previous year 37%

"*COGS= Cost of Material Consumed + Purchases of Stock-in-Trade + Changes in inventories of Work in Progress)

@Average Inventory= Simple Average of Opening & Closing Stock of Materials and Work in Progress

Reason for change more than 25%: Improvement on account of gradual normalisation of operation in second
half of the year.

L



f) Trade Receivables turnover ratio = Net Sales divided by Average Debtors

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Revenue from Operations 25,858.65 17,662.56
Average Debtors®@ 10,989.14 11,465.82
Ratio 2.35 1.54
% Change from previous year 53%

@@ Average Debtors= Simple Average of Opening and Closing Trade Receivables
Improvement in Sales during the year on account of gradual
normalisation of operation.

Reason for change more than 25%:

g) Trade payables turnover ratio = Cost of Goods Sold (COGS) divided by Average Creditors

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Cost of Goods Sold (COGS)*** 15,131.68 10,717.25
Average Creditors®®@ 7.814.66 6541.63
Ratio 1.94 1.64
% Change from previous year 18%

***C0OGS= Cost of Material Consumed + Purchases of Stock-in-Trade + Changes in inventories of Work in Progress)
@@@pyerage Creditors=Simple Average of Opening and Closing Trade Payables

Reason for change more than 25%:

Not Applicable

h) Net capital Turnover Ratio =Net Sales divided by Net Working Capital (Current Assets - Current Liabilities)

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Revenue from Operations 25,858.65 17,662.56
Net Working Capital* (643.57) 4,111.57
Ratio (40.18) 4.30
% Change from previous year -1034%

* Net Working Capital= Current Assets- Current Liabilities
Due to increase in Current Liabilities mainly Trade Payables

Reason for change more than 25%:

i) Net profit ratio = Net profit after tax divided by Revenue from operations

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Loss for the year (2,693.39) (2,786.09)
Revenue from operations 25,858.65 17,662.56
Ratio -10% -16%
% Change from previous year -38%

Reason for change more than 25%:

Gradual improvement in operation and contribution from current contracts.

i) Return on Capital employed= PBIT divided by Average Capital Employed

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
PBIT (2,759.66) (3,007.23)
Average Capital Employed™ 20,782.98 21228.43
Ratio -13% -14%
% Change from previous year -6%

Reason for change more than 26%:

Not Applicable

iE Capital Employed = Tangible Net Worth (Total Equity) + Total Debt (Borrowings)

k) Return on Investment (Return on Fixed Deposit)= Income Generated from Investment divided by Time Weighted Average Investrr

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Return on Investment 4.84% 5.98%
% Change from previous year -19%

Reason for change more than 25%:

W

Not Applicable
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47 Disclosures required under Section 22 of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006

{Rs in Lakhs)

48

As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any SME supplier as at the end of the accounting year 1,098.89 290.19
(ii) Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 0.13 0.08
(iii) The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the .
appointed day -
(iv) The amount of interest due and payable for the year 0.13 0.08
0.13 0.08

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid ai the end of the accounting year
(vi) The amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest -
dues as above are aclually paid

The above information regarding dues to Micro and Small Enterprises has been delermined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
infarmation collected with the Company, This has been relied upon by the auditors.

Detalls of Payments to Auditor
(Rs in Lakhs}

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

For the year ended
March 31, 2022
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Payments to auditor excluding taxes

Audit fees* 22.50 19.50

Other Services-Certification fees 0.50 1.76

Reimbursement of Expenses - -
23.00 21,25

* Includes limited review fees.

Lease

On transition, during FY2019-20 the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of ‘Right of Use' asset of Rs.19.98 lakhs and a corresponding lease
liability of Rs.19.99 lakhs. The effect of this adoption is insignificant on the profit before tax, profit for the period and earnings per share. Ind AS 116 will result
in an decrease in cash outflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

Impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 on (he slatement of profit and loss :

50 Provislon for Warranty expense

Particulars

For the year,
ended
March 31, 2022

For the year,
ended
March 31, 2021

[Interest on lease liabilies (Refer Note 36) 0.13 0.89
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (Refer

Note 37) 4.01 7.99
Impact on the statement of profit and

loss for the year 4.14 8.88
Expenses related to short term lease

incurred during the year 186.10 186.51

Provision for Warranty expense relates to warranty provision made in respect of waterproofing services, the estimated cost of which is accrued at the time of

sale.

The services are generally covered under a free warranty period from completion of work up to 10 years.

The movement of provision for warranty s as fellows:

51

*

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Balance as at Beginning of the year 177.42 165.12
Additlon {Refer Note 38) 60.00 60.00
Utilisation (50.00) (47.70)
Balance as at Closing of the year (Refer Note 27) 187.42 177.42

Note on Buslness Purchase Agreement

During the financial year 2015-16, pursuant to a Business Transfer Agreement (BTA) entered into by the company with Nina Concrete Systems Private
Limited (NCSPL), the company acquired the waterproofing Business (the “Business”), including all its assumed assets and assumed liabilities, of NCSPL, a
private limited company based In India (the “Seller”), as a going concern and on a slump sale basis for a lump-sum consideration, with effect from April 17,
2015.

The terms and conditions of the BTA included a total purchase consideration of Rs 8,202.12 Lakhs, out of which Rs. 7,871.44 Lakhs was settled by the
Company to the Seller as of March 31, 2022, A balance amount of Rs 330.68 Lakhs including Holdback Amount is payable by the Company to the Seller
after settlement of the unrealised Net Working Capital.

An amount of the identified Net Working Capital, i.e. Receivables, Inventories, Retention Monies receivables, etc which was not fully realised by April 15,
2020, was to be deducted by the Company from the Holdback amount and the balance was to be paid (o the sellsr or recovered from the seller. The
settlement of which was to be completed by October 31, 2020, post verification of books of account.

The report is submitted by the Independent audilors and is under discussion. The same will be finalised in the Financial Year 2022-23.
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Notes forming part of the fInancial statements
Corporate Social Responsibility

As per Seclion 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a company, meeling the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average net profil for the
immediately preceding three financial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The areas for CSR activities are eradication of hunger and
malnutrition, promoting education, art and culture, healthcare, destitute care and rehabilitation, environment sustainability, disaster relief and rural
development projects. A CSR committee has been formed by the company as per the Act. The funds were primarily allocated to a corpus and utilized
Lhrough the year on lhese activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013,

(a) Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year is Rs. 16.64 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs, §3.17 Lakhs)
{b) Amount spent during the year on:

Sr. No. Particulars In cash Yet to be paid in Total
cash
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - - -
{z) () )
{ii} On purposes other than (i} above 16.64 - 16.64
(53.17) - (53.17)
Figures in bracket indicates previous year's figures
o lidated Fi Ial St i

In accordance with the exemplion provided under Second Proviso 1o Rule 6 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, as amended, since the Company
fulfilled necessary criteria for the said exemption, the consolidated financial statements of the Company has not been prepared, for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022.

Other Information

1. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested any funds (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Infermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

2. The Company has not received funds from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficlaries.

Significant event during and after reporting perlod
The Company has taken into account extemal and internal information for assessing possible impact of COVID-19 on varicus elements of its financial
results, including recoverability of its assets.

Approval of financlal statements
The financial statements were recommended by the Audit Committee and approved for Issue by the Board of Directors on May 08, 2022,

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ehul Parikh Himanshu Kapadia
Managlng Director Diractor
o&f;
Malyank Palan ' Place: Mumbai

Head Finance & Accounis Date : May 09, 2022




